
CITY OF HANOVER 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING -- ZOOM 

NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
OFFICIAL MINUTES 

Call to Order 
Stan Kolasa called the November 23, 2020, Planning Commission Meeting to order at 7:00 pm virtually 
via Zoom.  Members present were Stan Kolasa, Jim Schendel, Dean Kuitunen, Mike Christenson and 
Gretchen Barrett.  Also present City Planner Cindy Nash, City Engineer Nick Preisler, Council Liaison 
Doug Hammerseng and Administrative Assistant Amy Biren.  Guest Chad Brink joined at 7:10 pm. 

Approval of Agenda 
MOTION by Schendel to approve the agenda, seconded by Kuitunen.  
Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote. 

Approval of Minutes from the October 26, 2020, Regular Meeting 
MOTION by Schendel to approve the October 26, 2020, minutes, seconded by Kuitunen. 
Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote. 

Citizen’s Forum 
None 

Public Hearing 
Variance from the Front Yard Setback at 10940 4th Street 

Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:02 pm, 

Nash explained that Chad Brink, applicant and owner of Big Bore Barbecue, 10940 4th Street, has applied 
for a variance from the front yard setback.  He has started to construct a covered area over the smokers, but 
construction was halted due to lack of building permit or site plan approval from the City.  Biren confirmed 
that only the posts had been installed and a tarp was acting as a temporary roof. 

Nash continued saying that there is a separate action of an Administrative Lot Combination of the two lots 
as the smoker and proposed structure are over the property lines.  Also, the outdoor seating area to the north 
is not under consideration at this time as it is a temporary approval under the Covid Emergency Orders. 

Hammerseng asked if there were any plans to view in order to see what the structure would look like.  Nash 
replied no.  Kolasa said it appears that a roof will be installed and it will mimic what is already there. 
Barrett also said that the area in front of the smokers is not used for parking.  Schendel added that there is 
also a fire hydrant in that location. 

Christenson asked if the structure will be considered permanent and Nash replied yes. 

Schendel believes that footings have been poured. 

Chad Brink joined the meeting at 7:10 pm. 

Hammerseng asked Brink what the structure would look like.  Brink replied that members could compare 
it to a pergola like structure with a steel roof and it will be free standing.  The intention of the structure is 
to keep employees protected from the weather when smoking the meats. 

Christenson asked whether or not it would be enclosed.  Brink replied no.  He continued explaining that 
there would be a layer of steel covering the inside trusses, creating a ceiling and an added layer of fire 
protection.  This was advised by the building inspector.  Schendel asked for confirmation that it would not 
be attached to the building.  Brink concurred. 



Brink said that the footings are 52 inches deep to meet code and that there are five posts in the front and 
five posts in the back. and a low sloping roof is planned in order to shed precipitation.  Hammerseng asked 
if it would look like the rest of the building.  Brink stated that it would be stained the same color as the 
building. 
 
Hammerseng asked if having building code requirements was necessary for the variance and Nash replied 
that would be handled by the building inspector. 
 
Christenson asked if Brink had considered extending the front of the building, the wall, in front of the 
smokers.  Brink said no, there wasn’t really a need for that and it would be an added cost for no reason. 
 
Kolasa asked Nash what was needed from the Board.  Nash replied that a recommendation to Council is 
needed and there were conditions outlined in the memo that have been discussed.  Kolasa asked if requiring 
a building permit could be a condition.  Nash said that could be added if the Board desired it. 
 
Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission at 7:18 pm. 
 
MOTION by Barrett to send the variance request for the front yard setback forward to Council for approval 
with the conditions listed in the memo and with the addition of a condition of acquiring a building permit 
to finish construction, seconded by Christenson. 
Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote. 
 
Unfinished Business 
 None 
 
New Business 
 None 
 
Reports and Announcements 
 Christenson thanked the City for ensuring that 15th Street was fixed and patched.  Preisler said that 
there were two specific areas that had cracked and needed patching.  It was done last Thursday (November 
19th) since the hot mix plants were shutting down on Friday.  It will be watched over the winter and if 
anything else occurs, it will be fixed in the spring.  Soft spots sometimes occur when the gravel is too soft 
to pave.  When the patching occurred, Preisler was present and was happy to see that the gravel was solid. 
 Barrett asked if the ice rinks would happen this year and if decorations would be going up.  Biren 
said that is up for discussion at Tuesday’s Council meeting. 
 Nash said that an application in the Mercantile Pass Development would be dropped off at City 
Hall this week for a Bill’s Superette.  Biren asked if this would be on the December agenda and Nash was 
unsure as a traffic study will be needed.  It would also depend on what is submitted and if everything that 
is required is submitted. 
 Biren reminded Board members to review their time cards. 
 
Adjournment 
MOTION by Schendel to adjourn, seconded by Kuitunen.   
Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote.  
Meeting adjourned at 7:28 pm. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Amy L. Biren 
Administrative Assistant 


